

Surgery ICU Course Number: 8002

Course Director

Susan F. McLean, M.D. FACS Office number: 915-215-5583 Office location: AEC, 2nd Floor, RM. 264 Email: <u>susan.mclean@ttuhsc.edu</u> Pager: 915-663-0177

Program Coordinator:

Rebecca Dorris Office phone: 915-215-4699 Office location: AEC-104G, Surgery Department Email: <u>r.dorris@ttuhsc.edu</u>



1 | P a g e

Approved by CEPC 6/5/2017

Table of Contents

Introduction:	3
Locations for rotation:	4
Sample Schedule:	4
Goals and Objectives	7
Patient Conditions – required Op Log entries	13
Procedures the MSIV will be expected to either observe, assist, or perform:	13
Assessment Overview	
Grading Criteria:	15
Mid Clerkship Feedback:	
SICU Daily schedule and expectations:	17
Didactics schedule:	
Reading Assignments:	19
Absence policy:	20
Needle Stick Policy	20
Appendix 1: Summary table of Learning objectives, requirements.	24

SICU Critical Care

Introduction: Welcome to the SICU selective. This will be a month of growth and hopefully excitement. You will certainly see conditions you did not encounter last year as an MSIII. The main goal of this rotation is to prepare you for internship. We want you to be ready to be on call in an ICU on day one. Even if you are not entering a surgical field, this rotation will be helpful. We have had many students and interns who are not planning on a surgical career sign up for a month in the SICU. We want you to be active and involved in patient care. Some objectives follow, but you will find that reading about your patients will help you understand their course and the interventions in the SICU. Have a great rotation!

Susan F. McLean, M.D., SICU Director



Locations for rotation:

- 1. ICU: This is on the second floor of the North Tower of University Medical Center. You can access the ICU by going to the second floor on the North Tower Elevators. (These are near the North Tower entrance) The ICU conference room is used for morning report. (ICU-CONF)
- 2. PICU: Some patients may be on the Pediatric ICU, on the 10th floor of the El Paso Children's Hospital. This is accessed by the staff elevators located in the main lobby.
- 3. Operating Room: This is located on the first floor of the North Tower area of University Medical Center of El Paso.
- 4. Emergency Department: This is located on the First floor of the Thomason Tower of University Medical Center, adjacent to OR.
- 5. AEC: Administration Building for TTUHSC El Paso: This is located on 4800 Alberta Avenue, directly behind the University Medical Center. You should attend Trauma morbidity and mortality conference, trauma grand rounds, TECCS talks (Texas Education in Critical Care Series) usually in Auditorium A or B. Mid-clerkship evaluations occur here also.

Sample Schedule:

Week One (1):

<u>Monday</u>	<u>Tuesday</u>	<u>Wednesday</u>	<u>Thursday</u>	<u>Friday</u>	<u>Saturday</u>	<u>Sunday</u>
0600: student	<u>0600: student</u>					
Round on	<u>Round on</u>	Round on	<u>Round on</u>	Round on	Round on	
patient-ICU	<u>patient</u>	<u>patient</u>	<u>patient</u>	<u>patient</u>	patient	
					Students must	
					<u>round one</u>	
					weekend day	
					<u>on two</u>	
					weekends.	
0730:	0730:	0730: Morning	0700: Grand	0730:	0730: Morning	
Morning	Morning	report	Rounds or	Morning	report	
report	report		Other lecture,	report		
ICU-CONF			AEC			
			Auditorium B			
0800: SICU	0800: SICU	0800: SICU	0800: SICU	0800: SICU	0800: SICU	
rounds-ICU	rounds	rounds	rounds	rounds	rounds	
4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	
rounds-ICU	rounds	rounds	rounds	rounds	rounds	



Week Two (2):

Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	<u>Saturday</u>	<u>Sunday</u>
<u>0600: student</u> <u>Round on</u> <u>patient</u>	0600: student Round on patient	0600: student Round on patient	0600: student Round on patient	0600: student Round on patient	0600: student Round on patient Students must round one weekend day on two weekends.	
0730: Morning report	0730: Morning report	0730: Morning report	0700: Grand Rounds or Other lecture, AEC Auditorium B	0730: Morning report	0730: Morning report	
0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	
4 PM: sign out rounds	4 PM: sign out rounds	4 PM: sign out rounds	4 PM: sign out rounds	4 PM: sign out rounds	4 PM: sign out rounds	
				Mid-clerkship evaluation. AEC, surgery department. This could also be Thursday.		

Week Three (3):

Monday	<u>Tuesday</u>	<u>Wednesday</u>	Thursday	<u>Friday</u>	<u>Saturday</u>	<u>Sunday</u>
0600: student	<u>0600: student</u>					
Round on	<u>Round on</u>	Round on	Round on	<u>Round on</u>	Round on	
patientICU	<u>patient</u>	<u>patient</u>	<u>patient</u>	<u>patient</u>	<u>patient</u>	
					<u>Students must</u>	
					<u>round one</u>	
					weekend day	
					<u>on two</u>	
					<u>weekends.</u>	
0730:	0730:	0730: Morning	0700: Grand	0730:	0730: Morning	
Morning	Morning	report	Rounds or	Morning	report	
report—ICU	report		Other lecture,	report		
CONF			AEC			
			Auditorium B			
0800: SICU	0800: SICU	0800: SICU	0800: SICU	0800: SICU	0800: SICU	
roundsICU	rounds	rounds	rounds	rounds	rounds	
4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	4 PM: sign out	
roundsICU	rounds	rounds	rounds	rounds	rounds	



Week Four (4):

Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	<u>Saturday</u>	<u>Sunday</u>
0600: student Round on patient	0600: student Round on patient	0600: student Round on patient	0600: student Round on patient	0600: student Round on patient	O600: studentRound onpatientStudents mustround oneweekend dayon twoweekends.	
0730: Morning report	0730: Morning report	0730: Morning report	0700: Grand Rounds or Other lecture, AEC Auditorium B	0730: Morning report	0730: Morning report	
0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	0800: SICU rounds	
4 PM: sign out rounds	4 PM: sign out rounds	4 PM: sign out rounds				
				Student Powerpoint presentation. This could also be Thursday. This is usually in ICU-CONF		

The following are learning goals and objectives for the SICU rotation. Included are what the goals are, the specific objectives to meet those goals, and how you will be evaluated on meeting those goals. After this, some suggested resources are listed. You are free to use other resources which you may like.

Abbreviations: Medical Education Program Goals and Objectives: MEPGOs (he full set of MEPGOs is available on the PLFSOM website)

Entrustable Professional Activities: EPAs.

Entrustable Professional Activities or EPAs are those activities you are expected to be able to do upon graduation. PLFSOM has selected 3 for subinternships and SICU rotations:

- o EPA 4 enter and discuss orders and prescriptions
- o EPA 8 give or receive a patient handover to transition care responsibility
- o EPA 10 recognize a patient requiring urgent or emergent care and initiate evaluation and management

For a quick reference on learning objectives, requirements and evaluations, and links to institutional learning objectives, see Summary Table in Appendix 1.



Goals and Objectives

Medical Knowledge

GOALS:

Each medical student will be instructed by Critical Care Faculty on relevant patient care issues requiring medical knowledge and on the application of basic science information to issues frequently encountered in critically ill patients. These include:

- Airway anatomy and its impact on airway management of critically ill patients including mask ventilation, intubation, and surgical airway management.
- Subsets of shock including cardiogenic, hypovolemic and septic
- Blood gas interpretation
- Identification and management of respiratory compromise/failure
- Ventilator management
- Fluid and electrolyte management of ICU patients.
- Student must have knowledge of how to diagnose acute myocardial ischemia syndromes and must list patient's cardiac medications on note.
- Trauma: student must understand basic ICU trauma care
- Neurologic Dysfunction and Neurologic support
- Life Threatening Infections/Sepsis
- Special populations: pregnant ICU patients
- Venous thromboembolism
- In addition, students will complete four online voice-over powerpoint modules during the rotation.

OBJECTIVES:

Upon completion of the Critical Care rotation, each medical student will demonstrate to a Critical Care faculty member or designated individual that the student understands and is proficient in the goals by:

- Student must complete a minimum of 1 supervised mask ventilation. (2.1, 1.10)
- The student will assist with surgical airway management at least once. The student will list pre-op qualifications for tracheostomy. (2.1, 1.10)
- Providing a written list of a minimum of 3 criteria that identify each of the subsets of shock (cardiogenic, hypovolemic, obstructive, and distributive or septic shock.) (2.2, 2.3)



- Interpreting and discussing a minimum of 10 blood gas test results of a patient while on rounds with the ICU team (2.1, 2.2, 2.3)
- providing a plan of fluid and electrolyte management for a minimum of 5 patients to be shared with the ICU team while on rounds (2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 1.3, 1.6)
- Listing the criteria for the definition of Sepsis and Septic Shock as defined in February 2016 Sepsis 3 Definition by the Society of Critical Care Medicine. See SCCM.org for full article. (2.3, 2.6)
- Student must write a note for ICU rounds on at least one trauma patient. (1.7)
- Student must examine at least one patient with neurologic dysfunction and calculate a Glasgow coma scale correctly at least once. (2.2, 2.3, 1.1, 1.3)
- Student must record culture results on patients with cultures pending. (2.2, 2.3)
- Student may round on one pregnant ICU patient: this is not required but recommended. (1.3)
- Student must list on their note stress ulcer prophylaxis and also Venous Thromboembolism prophylaxis. (2.2, 2.3, 2.6)
- Student must be able to list workup of suspected Deep Venous Thrombosis or Pulmonary Embolus in an ICU patient. (2.3, 1.2, 1.6)

EVALUATION:

- Evaluation will be on rounds. The student will hand out evaluation cards with a goal of daily Clinical Evaluation Card (CEC), with a minimum of 7 cards by mid-clerkship turned in to the clerkship coordinator and 10 cards by the end of the month.
- The student will record assisting at one tracheostomy on his/her OPLOG during the rotation.
- Mask ventilation will be assessed at the end of the ventilation demonstration.
- ABG interpretation will occur during rounds; these should be recorded on OPLOG as "respiratory failure" or "mechanical ventilation" patients. This is one of the EPA's (10) which need to be completed (Identification of critically ill patient).
- Criteria for shock will be identified at the end of the shock lecture. This is one of the EPA's (10) which must be completed.
- Sepsis criteria knowledge will be assessed by a quiz following the sepsis lecture.

PATIENT CARE

GOALS:

Medical students will be introduced to complex medical patients with critical illnesses requiring extensive monitoring and dynamic management. The goal is for each student to:

- Be responsible for understanding his or her patients' medical conditions throughout the student's rotation
- Be responsible for daily notes on his/her patients
- Provide appropriate treatment and examination studies of his or her patients in conjunction with the ICU team



- Have exposure to invasive monitoring techniques including central venous access and arterial lines and participate in these procedures.
- Student must understand cardiac defibrillation, pericardiocentesis.
- Develop an appreciation for the intensive, around-the-clock patient care needs
- Experience and participate in end-of-life ethical issues, including the potential for organ procurement
- Identifying sepsis or septic shock when present in a patient, or in a patient simulation.
- The student will understand specialized wound care in the surgical patient (also a systems' based practice objective.)

OBJECTIVES:

To achieve the goals, each student will:

- Be responsible for a minimum of 2 patients throughout their rotation; prepare daily ICU notes and present during daily rounds. (1.1, 1.3, 1.2, 1.6, 1.7, 4.2)
- Be responsible for providing a minimum of 1 extensive treatment plan for a newly admitted ICU patient, including examination studies. (1.3, 1.2, 1.6)
- Be expected to follow up on all ordered laboratory values and examination studies as they pertain to the student's patients. (1.3, 1.4, 5.7)
- Have an opportunity to observe the insertion of at least 1 CVP and 1 A-line in a patient. (1.10)
- Insert 1 CVP and 1 A-line in a mannequin or patient. (1.10)
- Read and be able to list steps and anatomical landmarks for pericardiocentesis. (1.10, 2.1, 2.2)
- List steps in cardiac defibrillation. (1.2, 1.5, 1.6, 2.3)
- Student must observe or perform wound care with wound care team on at least 2 occasions. (1.10, 7.3)
- Participate in lecture-format didactic sessions addressing end of life issues, including organ procurement (presented by Southwest Organ Transplant) OR round on and write notes on at least 1 patient being considered for organ donation. (1.8, 5.4)

EVALUATION:

Patient notes will be examined daily by the ICU attending.

- Follow-up will be assessed during sign out rounds.
- The student will give evening sign out "Hand off" procedure during his/her rotation. This is one of the EPA's (8) which need to be completed (handoff of critically ill patient).
- The student will write the ICU transfer summary on at least 5 patients during the rotation. This is also a handoff procedure. This is one of the EPA's (8) which need to be completed.
- Participation in CVP and art line will be assessed by examining the OPLOG and also the CEC's, which should be handed to the participants after the student participates during a procedure.
- The student will write at least one set of ICU admission orders. This is one of the EPA's (4) which need to be completed.
- Student must read assigned readings in Marino on cardiac resuscitation.
- Document wound care on OPLOG and/or using CEC's



GOALS:

Management of critically ill patients requires a team approach involving multiple levels of communication. Medical students will:

- Learn the appropriate format for presenting patient information on rounds.
- practice communicating treatment plans with critical care patients
- initiate communication with family members of patients regarding treatment plans and outcomes
- Learn to verbally transfer care daily.

OBJECTIVES:

- During daily rounds, medical students will present their patients in the expected and accepted format. This will be assessed by the rounding Critical Care faculty. (4.2)
- Students will be expected to communicate treatment plans with a minimum of 2 patients in the ICU while under direct observation of the ICU faculty member. (4.1, 4.2, 4.3)
- Critical Care faculty will evaluate and provide feedback for at least 1 verbal or written transfer of care by a medical student to the on call team. (4.2)
- Each medical student will participate in a meeting with family members as an observer. (4.1, 4.3)

EVALUATIONS:

- Student will PARTICIPATE IN DAILY ROUNDS ON A MINIMUM OF 2 PATIENTS AND A MAXIMUM OF 3 PATIENTS.
- Student will be observed to communicate treatment plans to team daily. Assessment will be by observation and by CEC's
- Student will be observed communicating to a patient or family the day's treatment plan at least twice. This evaluation will be recorded on CEC. An example would be: Suppose the treatment plan includes placing a chest tube. The student would communicate to his/her patient this plan and reasons for the tube. The student would not be expected to communicate a long complicated plan. Or the student could communicate to a family for example, that a family member on a ventilator will undergo a spontaneous breathing trial and if he/she passes, would then be extubated and liberated from mechanical ventilation. The student would be expected to know what is passing for an SBT.
- Patient handoffs are an EPA: see above. This communication skill will be assessed.

PROFESSIONALISM

GOALS:

- Medical students will be expected to arrive on time for all weekday rounding activities in the ICU.
- Adequate preparation of patient information prior to rounds.



• ICU rounds are often long and extensive, appropriate behavior and attentiveness is expected throughout the experience on a daily basis.

OBJECTIVES:

- Medical students will be present and prepared a minimum of 10 minutes prior to rounds on each day. (5.3, 5.7)
- All relevant laboratory data, X-ray, CT and MRI results must be presented by the student to the ICU team for patients being followed. (5.2, 5.3, 5.7)

EVALUATION:

• Evaluation will be by direct observation and recorded on a CEC.

PRACTICE BASED LEARNING AND IMPROVEMENT

GOALS:

- While on their Critical Care rotation, each medical student will be instructed as to the use of the relevant ICU checklist while on service.
- The student will understand Joint Commission "Core Measures" and their applicability to ICU patients.

OBJECTIVES:

- Students will be expected to apply the ICU checklist to their patients while on service. (3.4, 3.5)
- Students will fill out the core measures section of the SICU note daily, including exceptions to the application of core measures. (3.2, 3.5)
- Students will be expected to be able to order appropriate Deep Venous Thrombosis Prophylaxis and to note when this must be omitted. (3.2, 3.5)

EVALUATIONS:

- The student note will be assessed for adherence to filling out the core measures section.
- In the event that the hospital switches to computer only notes and the student cannot access notes, the student will fill out a shadow note.
- The student PowerPoint presentation will be assessed as an example of the student's ability to research a topic, which is essential to Practice-Based Learning and Improvement. The PowerPoint will also be assessed for use of resources.

SYSTEMS-BASED PRACTICE

GOALS:

Medical students will learn:

- Importance of discharge planning for ICU patients and local resources available
- Criteria requiring ICU admission



• Challenges of discharge planning for the medically underserved patient.

OBJECTIVES:

- Each student will be expected to provide a written transfer summary for at least one patient. (6.4)
- Students will be given sample cases of patients who might need ICU admission. Students would be expected to incorporate admission to ICU as part of plan. (1.5, 6.3, 1.6)
- Students will attend at least 2 SICU discharge planning meetings with a social worker. An alternative would be to discuss discharge planning of their patients on at least 2 patients during rounds. An example of discharge planning would be if physical therapy has determined that the patient should have inpatient rehabilitation, then the student would bring that up during the daily presentation. (6.4, 6.1, 6.2)
- Student must also interact with wound care team as in Patient Care above. (6.4)
- Student must observe 1 speech path evaluation. (6.4, 7.1)

EVALUATIONS:

• The student will be observed for meeting the learning objectives and recorded on the CEC. Either the faculty or the ICU social worker or Case Manager or both may comment on the CEC regarding Systems-Based Practice.

Interprofessional Collaboration

GOALS:

MEDICAL STUDENTS WILL LEARN: COLLABORATION WITH MULTIPLE OTHER DISCIPLINES IN MEDICINE AND ALSO OTHER DISCIPLINES SUCH AS NURSING, SOCIAL WORK, PHYSICAL THERAPY, SPEECH AND LANGUAGE PATHOLOGY.

OBJECTIVES:

- STUDENTS WILL CALL AT LEAST TWO CONSULTS AND FILL OUT CONSULT REQUEST DURING THE MONTH FOR OTHER MEDICAL DISCIPLINES (6.4. 7.1)
- STUDENTS WILL INTERACT WITH NURSING, SOCIAL WORK AND PHYSICAL THERAPY DURING THE COURSE OF THE DAY (7.2, 7.3)

EVALUATIONS:

• THE STUDENT WILL BE OBSERVED FOR MEETIGN THE LEARNING OBJECTTIVES AND RECORDED ON THE CEC. THE FACULTY OR RESIDENTS WILL COMENT ON THE CEC REGARDING INTERPROFESSIONAL COLLABORATION.

Personal and Professional Development

GOALS:

MEDICAL STUDENTS WILL LEARN HOW TO DEVELOP THEMSELVES FURTHER IN THE MEDICAL PROFESSION. THIS INCLUDES SELF-MOTIVATED LEARNING AND LEARNING THE PROFESSIONAL SKILLS OF RESEARCHING AND CREATING A PRESENTATION.



12 | P a g e

Approved by CEPC 6/5/2017

OBJECTIVES:

• STUDENTS WILL SELECT A TOPIC AND RESEARCH, CREATE AND PRESENT A POWERPOINT PRESENTATION ON A SHORT TOPIC OF THEIR CHOICE. (8.5)

EVALUATIONS:

• STUDENT POWERPOINTS WILL BE EVALUATED BY THE COURSE DIRECTOR FOR COMPLETENESS, CORRECTNESS AND NEATNESS OF PRESENTATION.

CONDITION	EXPECTED ROLE	QUANTITY	COMMENTS
RESPIRATORY FAILURE	ASSIST OR MANAGE	10	PATIENTS WILL BE ON A
			VENTILATOR
SHOCK	ASSIST OR MANAGE	1	ANY SHOCK
TRAUMA, MULTISYSTEM	ASSIST OR MANAGE	5	
TRAUMA, TRAUMATIC	ASSIST OR MANGE	2	ANY TRAUMATIC BRAIN
BRAIN INJURY			INJURY
PNEUMONIA	ASSIST OR MANGE	1	MUST BE DIAGNOSED
			WITH CULTURES OR CXR
INFECTION	ASSIST OR MANAGE	3	ANY INFECTION OTHER
			THAN PNEUMONIA
ALTERED MENTAL	ASSIST OR MANGE	4	ANY ALTERED MENTAL
STATUS			STATUS: COULD BE
			WITHDRAWAL,
			DEMENTIA, ICU
			DELIRIUM,
			INTOXICATION

Patient Conditions – required Op Log entries

Procedures the MSIV will be expected to either observe, assist, or perform:

Procedure	Expected role	Quantity	Initials
ABG interpretation	Р	5	
Ventilator management,	Р	5	
change settings in			
response to ABG			
Arterial blood gas	30, 1P	30, 1P	
Central line insertion	0	3	
Arterial line insertion	0	3	
Chest PT	0	1	



Endotracheal suctioning	0	2	
Extubation	0	1	
Tube thoracotomy	30	3	
Wound care	О,Р	2	
Speech Pathology	0	1	
Evaluation			

<u>Note</u>: for central line insertion: if a student observes 5 and has performed well in other aspects of the course, the student may perform a central line insertion under supervision. The same is true for arterial line insertion and tube thoracotomy.

<u>Note</u>: alternate assignments will be made to fulfill the requirement for a mandatory condition or procedure if not encountered in clinical work.



Assessment Overview

You may wonder how you will be assessed during the rotation. We want you to be successful in meeting all learning objectives. You will be assessed as follows:

- 1. Participation in rounds: the student will be expected to be up to date on patients. Knowledge may also be assessed during rounds, and also systems-based practice, as ICU patients have multiple issues along the continuum of care.
- 2. Participation in procedures: Students are not expected to perform the procedures, but will be expected to know about the procedure, the indications and the pertinent anatomy. If a student shows that he/she is prepared, he/she may be allowed to perform a procedure. Procedures include bedside as well as Operating Room procedures. Knowledge about anatomy, indications, and complications may be assessed. Professionalism and teamwork are often assessed during procedures.
- 3. Participation in history and physical exams: this is less frequent in ICU, as most patients already have the history and physical performed, but a student may be asked to perform or assist with history and physical exams.
- 4. Participation in clinic: This is also less frequent. A student may be asked to see a post-ICU patient in clinic.
- 5. Powerpoint Presentation. The student will prepare a short (20 slides or less) PowerPoint presentation on a topic of his/her choice related to ICU. The student will give this presentation during the last week of ICU.

Students are assessed by Faculty, residents and nurse practitioners. In order to capture evaluations during the multiple activities which occur during the ICU rotation, Clinical Evaluation Cards are used. These are 5 inch by 8 inch cards which you will receive prior to the start of the rotation. On the front is an area for your name and date. The activity and setting are options to circle at the top. The main competencies (e.g., knowledge, verbal presentation, written presentation...) are listed on the left hand side and the evaluation is listed to the right. You may receive "below MS-IV", "Average MS-IV" or "Above MS-IV", numerically graded 1-3. At the bottom of the list is a professionalism grade. An evaluation may circle "NA". On the back of the card is room for comments, these are mandatory. Faculty and residents are familiar with the CEC's; these have been used since October 2014 on this rotation. Your mid-clerkship evaluation and end of rotation evaluation which use the information on these cards will be online, the same as your other MS-IV rotations.

Grading Criteria:

A. Honors Grade:

- 1. To receive "Honors" you must have at least 4 CEC's turned in which show greater than 3 "Above MS-IV" in the list of evaluations.
- 2. To receive "Honors" you must have your OPLOG updated at Mid-clerkship and by Wednesday of the last week of the rotation
- 3. You must meet all objectives.
- 4. You must receive Honors or "Above MS-IV" on the PowerPoint presentation on at least one CEC.



5. An Honors student will be up to date on patients, likely round on 3 patients when patients are available, be up to date on culture results, diagnostic imaging results, or other tests. The Honors student will be able to answer basic questions about his/her patients disease because the student will read about his/her patients after rounds or during evenings.

B. Passing Grade:

- 1. You must have at least 5 cards which have a predominance of "Average MS-IV" on 4 of the list of evaluations.
- 2. You must have your OPLOG updated by Wednesday of the last week of the rotation.
- 3. You must meet all objectives.
- 4. You must receive Pass on the PowerPoint presentation on at least one CEC.
- 5. The MS-IV who passes this rotation should be able to meet all the objectives. He/she may need help with understanding the diseases and may not answer all questions correctly but should show evidence of having looked up the patient diseases during his/her study time.

C. Failing Grade:

- 1. Receiving "Below MS-IV" on 6 CEC's on 4 of the list of evaluations.
- 2. Failing to meet objectives. For example: not having completed notes by rounds. Not coming to rounds. Not participating even as helper or observer on procedures on your patients.
- 3. Excessive absences. Please see absence policy on the TTUHSC El Paso Common Clerkship Requirements.

Mid Clerkship Feedback:

You will have a mid-clerkship evaluation in order to assist you with progress in Surgery ICU; requirements, expectations, and possible methods of remediation will be discussed at that time. This will take place after at least two weeks in the surgical ICU. The exact date will be given to you by the Clerkship Coordinator. You must have at least 7 Clinical Evaluation Cards filled out prior to this meeting.

The formative feedback is based on:

- Clinical evaluation Cards and Professionalism evaluations -forms filled out by attending and residents.
- Review of Op-log encounter entries to date
- Review of Procedure log

Grading:

Honors/Pass/Fail and follow the PLF SOM grading system. Both ICU attending's and residents will participate in grading. Please also see Evaluations Overview.

Remediation:



The clerkship director will meet with students needing remediation and discuss a remediation strategy specific for objectives which are deficient. For example, if the notes are incomplete, the clerkship director can meet with the student about the note.

Pictures of Evaluation Cards:

Front:

	Encounter Document			Clinic	Other		
Observ	ved: Procedure	H/P	Daily I	Rounds	Consult C	linic Visit	Other
Evalu	ation Scale Rating:	1 – Below	M4	2 – Ave	erage M4	3 – Abo	ve M4
1.	Knowledge:		1	2	3		
2.	Technical Skills:		1	2	3		
3.	Written communicati	on:	1	2	3		
4.	Verbal Communication	n:	1	2	3		
5.	Team Work:		1	2	3		
6.	Other:		1	2	3		
7.	Professionalism:	Serious	S Conce	rn	Slight Cor	ncern	No Concern

Back:

Comments (Mandatory):
Was verbal feedback given to student?
Print: Sign:



SICU Daily schedule and expectations:

The SICU daily schedule starts with the student rounding on his/her assigned patients. Student will be assigned up to 3 patients. The student must arrive early enough to round on his/her patient and fill out the daily note. This note is on a template arranged by system. The student will attend morning report in the ICU conference room at 7:30 a.m. on days assigned. The student will then round with the team following morning report. Once team rounds end, the student will either attend a didactic session or help with completing work. This work may also complete the student's goals and objectives. For example, the student may write a transfer summary as part of the daily work.

The student will report to the SICU senior resident during the day. The student will be assigned as if an intern, that is one day per week will be completely off. The student will work no more than 12 hours per day. During the day, the student will be expected to follow up on test results, either x-rays, laboratory tests or other, including consults. Since the student may not give orders, if there is a need for his/her patient, the student will report to the senior resident, or on days the resident is off, the designated resident.

Didactics schedule:

Didactics will need to be completed online. There are 4 Voice-Over PowerPoint presentations to review during the rotation.



Reading Assignments:

The recommended textbook is "The ICU Book" by Paul Marino. This book is available online at Amazon.com. IN addition, the student should read the following "Guidelines" on <u>http://sccm.org</u>: http://www.sccm.org/Research/Guidelines/Pages/Guidelines.aspx. This page has all the guidelines.

- 1. Guidelines for national support: <u>http://sccmmedia.sccm.org/documents/LearnICU/Guidelines/Nutrition-SCCM-ASPEN.pdf</u>.
- 2. Suviving Sepsis guidelines: <u>http://www.sccm.org/Documents/SSC-Guidelines.pdf</u>.
- 3. Corticosteroid use: <u>http://www.learnicu.org/Docs/Guidelines/CoricosteroidInsufficiencyAdult.pdf</u>.
- Guidelines for insulin infusion: <u>http://www.learnicu.org/SiteCollectionDocuments/Glycemic_Control.pdf</u>. (recommended but not required.)
- 5. Red Blood Cell transfusion: <u>http://www.learnicu.org/Docs/Guidelines/RedBloodCell.pdf</u>. (Recommended but not required.)
- 6. Workup of fever: <u>http://www.learnicu.org/Docs/Guidelines/NewFeverAdult.pdf</u>.
- Critical Care Delivery: Structure and staffing in ICU: <u>http://www.learnicu.org/Docs/Guidelines/DeliveryIntensiveCare.pdf</u>. This is a systems-based practice readin.

There is also a set of handouts on ventilator management termed "AVLS" or Advanced Ventilatory Life Support, these will be handed out.

There is a shock guidelines algorithm, this will be handed out.

Please also see the overall evaluation section at the beginning of the syllabus.

Communication:

It is important that you check your email and maintain contact with our department. **Please check your email,** and respond to communications from the Director, residents or coordinator. Email is the primary mode of communication between the clerkship unit coordinators and students. You will receive important reminders from the clerkship unit coordinator or Director. We also encourage you to email us with questions or concerns. If you encounter any problems or conflicts that interfere with learning, you can discuss them with the senior resident or attending surgeon on the service to which you are assigned, Dr. Mclean, SICU Director will also be happy to discuss problems with you. Other problems or concerns can be discussed with the Clerkship Coordinator.



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Absence policy:

The SICU elective will follow the PLF SOM Policy If more than 3 days are needed off, then the student must notify the clerkship director for scheduling of remediation:

Please see the PLFSOM Common Clerkship Requirements. This rotation will adhere to the common policies. All absences must be excused by the Clerkship Director. Please notify the Clerkship Director and your team if you must be absent. For interviews occurring during the rotation, notify the Clerkship Director in advance of the expected missed dates. The Clerkship Director will assess the impact of the missed dates and assign makeup dates if necessary.

Excessive absences, tardiness or unexcused absences can have a negative impact on the student's final grade or professionalism evaluations and may necessitate remediation of the rotation. Each rotation syllabus will have the contact information for a student when they are absent.

Needle Stick Policy

Policy Statement:

A system is established and maintained to assure timely and appropriate treatment, reporting and follow-up of needle sticks/exposures to blood or body fluids for TTUHSC El Paso medical staff, residents, students, and employees.

Scope and Distribution:

This policy applies and will be distributed to all TTUHSC El Paso personnel.

Definitions:

A. Hazardous body fluids include blood and bloody fluids which are known or assumed to be associated with transmission of blood borne pathogens. (Other Potentially Infectious Materials – OPIM) The following fluids also are considered potentially infectious: cerebrospinal fluid, synovial fluid, pleural fluid, peritoneal fluid, pericardial fluid, and amniotic fluid. Feces, nasal secretions, saliva, sputum, sweat, tears, urine, and vomitus are not considered potentially infectious unless they contain blood.

B. VERY HIGH RISK Exposure

- 1. Transfusion of blood.
- 2. Injection of large volume of blood/HBF (>1ml).
- 3. Parenteral exposure to laboratory or research specimens containing high titer of virus.



- C. HIGH RISK Exposure
 - 1. Injection of blood (<1ml).
 - 2. Intramuscular (IM/"deep">3mm) injury produced by a blood/or OPIM contaminated needle, instrument or other sharp object.
 - 3. Laceration or similar wound produced by visible blood/or OPIM contaminated instrument or other sharp object, which causes spontaneous bleeding in the Health Care Worker.
 - 4. Visible laceration or similar new wound inoculated with blood/or OPIM.
- D. MODERATE RISK Exposure
 - 1. Laceration or similar wound produced by a blood/or OPIM contaminated instrument which does not cause spontaneous bleeding.
 - 2. Prior wound or skin lesion visibly contaminated with blood/or OPIM.
 - 3. Mucosal membrane inoculation with blood/or OPIM.
- E. LOW RISK Exposure
 - 1. Subcutaneous (SQ/" superficial") injury produced by a blood contaminated needle or instrument especially if not "hollow bore" ie: Lancet, etc.
 - 2. Laceration or similar wound produced by a non-contaminated instrument.
- F. VERY LOW RISK Exposure
 - 1. Intact skin visibly contaminated with any bloody fluid.

Procedure:

- A. IMMEDIATE Treatment at work site
 - 1. Wound Care/First Aid
 - a.Clean wound with soap and water.
 - b.Flush mucous membranes with water/saline.
 - c. Cover wound with dry dressing if necessary.
 - d.Collect source patient information if available (See Section E this policy).
 - e.Report to the UMC EP Health Department M-F, 8:00 a.m. 3:00 p.m. or JMC Emergency Department after regular business hours, immediately, within one hour, but at least within 2hrs.
- B. Reporting
 - Needle sticks and exposures to body fluids will be reported on the First Report of Injury form. All personnel will complete this form. The Human Resources Office makes the Workman's Compensation forms available to the employee's supervisor and USO. Human Resources will file Workman's Compensation reports for eligible employees.
 - 2. The First Report of Injury form: may be obtained from the TTUHSC El Paso HR Department or in the Emergency Department of UMC EP. HSCEP OP 70.13 is the WC Policy and all needed forms are attachments to this policy.



- 3. Report to UMC Occupational Health Department or Emergency Department and identify yourself to registration as a TTUHSC El Paso staff member with a blood/or OPIM exposure
- 4. Begin filling out forms provided.
- 5. Provide source patient and exposure information to the attending provider.
- 6. The provider will follow the protocols established by UMC Infection Control, based on CDC recommendations.
- 7. Follow the discharge instructions. If care was received in the ED follow up with UMC Occupational Health next business day will necessary.

C. Follow-Up:

- After receiving initial assessment and treatment for an exposure and having baseline labs drawn, TTUHSC El Paso employees and students will be monitored by UMC Occupational and Family Health. Lab requisitions will be provided to exposed individuals by Occupational Health at first contact for 6 week, 12 week and 6 month follow ups. It is the responsibility of the individual to have labs drawn at the appropriate intervals as noted on the requisitions.
- 2. Employees, who fail to comply with follow-up instructions, will have documentation placed in their health record.
- 3. Positive HIV, HBV or HCV Screens.
 - a. The UMC Occupational Health Nurse and the TTUHSC El Paso Director of Occupational Health, will follow-up on all employees who have exposures who subsequently have a positive HIV, HBV or HCV screen.
 - b. The employee will be notified and referred to the appropriate clinic or facility for follow-up.
 - c. Monitoring of referral follow-up will be done by the TTUHSC El Paso Occupational Health Nurse.
 - d. Health Care Workers may request referral to clinics outside of TTUHSC El Paso for evaluation and treatment.

CI. Source Investigation

- 1. If the source patient at a TTUHSC El Paso clinic site can be identified, the following steps will be taken:
 - a. Review the patient chart for previous documentation of HIV, HBV, RPR and HCV status, if present, report status to the Occupational Health Department or Emergency Department provider treating the exposed employee.
 - b. If HIV, HBV, HCV and RPR status is not present: get verbal permission from source patient to draw blood for testing.
 - i. Document source patient's consent to have blood drawn in their record.
 - ii. Have provider at the clinic site where exposure occurred, order lab screenings for HIV, HBsAg, HBsAB, HCV and RPR.
 - iii. On lab requisition put patients name and "source" and the name of the exposed employee/staff. Indicate on lab requisition "TTUHSC El Paso Occupational Health Department" and note "Needle stick" or "Exposure". This is important to prevent billing to the patient. Under no circumstances should the patient be billed. If there are any questions call the Occupational Department at 545-6541.



- iv. Copies of the lab results will be sent to the clinic for inclusion in the patient's medical record (copy in employee's file also, but without patient I.D).
- c. If the source patient does not consent to testing TTUHSC El Paso will follow the applicable law: Texas Health and Safety Code Article 4419b-1 Chapter 81.102. Tests; Criminal Penalty.
 - i. Blood will be obtained for HIV testing only.
 - ii. The lab requisition will have source patient's name and the exposed individual's name. No copies of this requisition will be kept on the patient's chart or in the clinic.
 - iii. The Occupational Health Department will notify the exposed individual of the HIV status and document "source patient" status in Occupational Health records with no identifiers. The lab report will be destroyed once the employee/staff has been notified.
- ci. If the source patient is positive or negative, the employee/staff will be offered testing at 6 weeks,12 weeks and 6 months. Counseling will be offered especially if the source patient is positive.
- 2. If the source individual is a patient at UMC EP or its clinics, the provider treating the exposed employee recommends the appropriate testing for the source patient.
 - a. The source patient orders are given to the employee, who is to deliver them directly to the unit where the source patient is located. They should be given to the nurse in charge or the unit clerk.
 - b. These orders will be processed according to the UMC Infection Control Policy # IC-023.
- 3. If the source patient is unknown the employee will be offered testing as "unknown source".
- E. References
 - 1. Updated US Public Health Service Guidelines for the Management of Occupational Exposure to HBV, HCV and HIV etc. June 29, 2001/Vol. 50/No. RR-11.
 - 2. American Journal of Infection Control (1998;26:289-354) and Infection Control and Hospital Epidemiology (1998; 19:407-63).
 - 3. Thomason Hospital Infection Control Policy # IC-023, Management of Occupational Exposures.
 - 4. Vernon's Texas Statutes and Codes Annotated Health and Safety Code. Article 4419b-1 Chapter 81.107.



Appendix 1: Summary table of Learning objectives, requirements. SICU MS-IV clerkship Learning objectives, evaluations, requirements

Subject	Learning objectives(Institutional	Evaluation	Requirement	Mechanism	Institutional learning
Medical Knowledge: Respiratory Failure	and competencies) Includes: A. Airway Management B. Diagnosis/ Management of Acute Respiratory Failure C. Mechanical Ventilation I D. Mechanical Ventilation II	Direct observation during presentations and written notes.	Student must discuss and recommend ventilator setting changes for at least 2 arterial blood gases on 2 different patients	Rounds on patients on ventilators. Lecture on ventilators. Readings in book and ICU syllabus. Assessment on Rounds with CEC's filled out.	objective Knowledge 2.1-2.4 Patient care 1.1- 1.8
Medical Knowledge: Shock and Alteration in Vital signs	E. Basic Hemodynamic Monitoring F. Diagnosis/ Management of Shock	Direct observation during presentations and written notes	Student must Discuss types of shock and arrive at differential diagnosis for patient in shock Student must have patient vital signs and hemodynamic signs in notes and be able with assistance to make an assessment	Rounds on patients in shock Resuscitations Which may occur at times other than rounds Readings in syllabus in book Student must read the current "surviving sepsis guidelines" on SCCM website SCCM.org Evaluation form on CEC's	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8
Subject	Learning objectives(Institutional and competencies)	Evaluation	Requirement	Mechanism	Institutional learning objective



Medical Knowledge: Cardiac Dysfunction	G. Myocardial Ischemia and Infarction	Direct observation of presentations on rounds	Student must list patient's cardiac medications and information in the CV part of note and include a plan.	Rounds, patient notes, reading in book and ICU syllabus	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8
Neurologic dysfunction	H. Neurologic support	Direct observation during presentations and written notes.	Student must examine a patient with neurologic dysfunction, and calculate a Glasgow Coma Scale score at least once.	Rounds, patient notes, reading in book and ICU syllabus	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8
Trauma and Burns	I. Burn and Trauma management	Direct observation during presentations and written notes. Discussions during new trauma admissions	Student must write a note for ICU rounds on at least one trauma patient and include and assessment and plan.	Rounds on trauma patients, attendance at daytime trauma admissions, readings in syllabus and book.	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8
Subject	Learning objectives(Institutional and competencies)	Evaluation	Requirement	Mechanism	Institutional learning objective
ICU infections	J. Life Threatening infections	Direct observation during presentations and written notes.	Student must record culture results and antibiotics in the patient note. Students must check culture results.	Rounds, discussions after rounds, patient notes review	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8
Special Populations	M. Special consideration in Selected populations N. Critical care in pregnancy	Direct observation during presentations and written notes.	Student must record prophylaxis against Stress ulcer prophylaxis and thromboembolic disease in the note	Rounds, evaluation of patient notes	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8 Systems based practice



Fluid and	K. Electrolyte and	Direct	Student must	Rounds,	Knowledge 2.1-
electrolytes	disturbances	observation during presentations and written notes.	record electrolytes and discuss ways of correction in note and on rounds at least twice.	evaluation of patient notes. CEC's	2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8
Subject	Learning objectives(Institutional and competencies)	Evaluation	Requirement	Mechanism	Institutional learning objective
Patient Care: Special Skills	Special skills vascular access, defibrillation, pericardiocentesis	Direct observation and discussion	Student must observe or perform a Seldinger technique wire change. Student must observe or could perform a central line insertion. Student must observe or perform an arterial line insertion. Student must observe or perform a tube thoracostomy	Rounds, direct observation. Student recording in OPLOG. Student does not have to perform any invasive procedure, but must observe and understand the technique. Also CEC's	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8
Systems Based Practice: The patient in Society	The student must participate with the social worker assigned to his/her patient during rounds and report on Social work interventions such as rehab placement. The student must list barriers to progression along the rehabilitation spectrum.	Direct observation.	Student must interact with a Social worker at least 2 times during the rotation.	Rounds, meetings with social work. CEC's must be filled out.	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8 Systems Based Practice 6.1-6.6 Interprofessional Collaboration 7.1-7.3
Systems Based Practice and Patient Care: Adjuncts to ICU care	List which patients require specialized wound care List which patients are at risk for post-ventilator swallowing dysfunction	Direct observation	Observe or perform wound care with wound care team on at least 2 patients. Observe one speech pathology consult.	Rounds, readings in book	Knowledge 2.1- 2.5 Patient care 1.2-1.8 Systems Based Practice 6.1-6 Interprofessional Collaboration 7.1-7.3



Subject	Learning objectives(Institutional and competencies)	Evaluation	Requirement	Mechanism	Institutional learning objective
Professionalism	See list under Learning objectives. Students must be on time and attentive on rounds. Students must work with other health care professionals in a collaborative fashion.	Direct observation	Students must attend at least 2 discharge planning meetings. Students must be on time and ready for rounds.	Clinical Evaluation Cards on rounds	Professionalism 5.1-5.7
Practiced Based Learniing and Improvement	Students should be aware of the TPOAT ICU checklist. Student will be able to list core measures applied to ICU patients Student must attend one Trauma Morbidity and Mortatlity Conferenc e Student must make a Powerpoint presentation on a topic of their choice.	Observation of written notes and discussion	Student must fill out the portion of ICU note pertaining to core measures	Clinical Evaluation cards	Practiced Based Learning and Improvement: 3.1-3.5 Powerpoint: e. 3.6, 3.7 Knowledge for Practice 2.4, 2.7
Interpersonal and communication skills	Student must be able to present patient status on rounds. Students will be able to discuss a care plan with a family or patient	Direct observation	Student must present a minimum of 2 patients on rounds. Students must be able to give at least one patient or family a care plan so that the patient or family could understand.	Clinical Evaluation cards.	Interpersonal and Communication Skills 4.1-4.5



Patient Care	Please refer to list on	Direct	Students must	Clinical	1.1-1.9
	Patient care under	observation	write notes,	Evaluation	
	learning objectives.	of behavior	participate in	Cards	
		and notes.	handoffs,		
			transfer care.		



28 | P a g e

Approved by CEPC 6/5/2017